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The South Craig district is characterized by signi cant diversity in architectural style,
scale and use. Institutional historic buildings including the Mellon Institute Library and
Belle eld Hall front S. Belle eld facing the Heinz Memorial Chapel and the Cathedral of
Learning. Fifth Avenue ranges from large scale institutional buildings including the Mellon
Institute Library and the St. Paul Cathedral to small scale commercial buildings including
the University owned PNC Bank site. Both large-scale and small-scale residential
buildings are located at the eastern edge of the district.
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Bellefield Towers

Belle eld Towers is an 8-story University-owned medical of ce building designed by
Urban Design Associates and completed in 1987. It is in the modernist style with
ribbon windows and spandrels clad with Indiana limestone. The building retains the
Romanesque bell tower from the former Belle eld Presbyterian Church designed by
Frederick J. Osterling and constructed in 1889.

Forbes Craig Apartments

The Forbes Craig Apartment building, constructed in 1952, is a 6-story red brick clad
modernist building with punched windows. It houses 102 students in the Honors
Housing Living Learning Community.
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Bellefield Hall

Belle eld Hall, designed by Benno Janssen and completed in 1926, originally housed
the Oakland branch of the Young Men's and Women s Hebrew Association. It is a
four-story Italianate style building constructed of red brick above a limestone base. The
building is a contributing structure in the Schenley Farms National Historic District and is
listed as a Pittsburgh History and Landmarks Foundation Historic Landmark. It contains
an indoor swimming pool, gym, tness center, and a 676-seat auditorium as well as
University of ces and facilities for the Music Department.

Craig Hall

Craig Hall is a 5-story University owned of ce building acquired by the University in 1988
and renovated shortly thereafter. Originally built in the late 1950s, it has a grey brick base
and recessed glass rst oor with upper oors clad with two-tone grey metal panels and
ribbon windows. It houses the administrative of ces of employment, payroll, and bene ts
services and the Of ce of University Communications.
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With the exception of the larger institutional buildings, most buildings within the district
are built to the property line with relatively narrow sidewalks extending to the curb. Street
trees, street parking and overhead utilities frame the edges of the streetscapes. The
eastern portion of the district is identi ed as having a low or dif cult public realm quality.
Henry, Filmore and Winthrop streets are narrow one-way secondary streets running east
west in the center of the district. Garage and loading access is collected along Henry
Street while Winthrop and Fillmore Streets provide street parking. Filmore street offers
a westward view of the Cathedral of Learning. Small scale retail lines S. Craig between
Fillmore and Forbes. Forbes Avenue is a broad 4-lane street with bike paths along both
curbs. Buildings along Forbes Avenue transition from institutional at S. Belle eld to
residential and small commercial at S. Craig.
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New development within the South Craig District should be compatible with the
character and scale of the existing buildings within the District. The area adjacent to
Belle eld Avenue is included in the Oakland Civic Center Historic District as well as the
Schenley Farms National Historic District but there are no development sites identi ed in
this area. The Campus Master Plan identi es the S. Belle eld and Forbes as a campus
arrival point. As such, development in this district should follow the General Design
Guidelines for improvements at this intersection.



